
1 
 

INLAND WETLANDS COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MINUTES 
 

April 12, 2023 @ 7:30 p.m. 
Council Chambers, Newtown Municipal Center 

3 Primrose Street, Newtown CT 
 

These Minutes are subject to approval by the Inland Wetland Commission 
 
Present:  Sharon Salling, Scott Jackson, Suzanne Guidera, Craig Ferris, Kendall Horch, Stephanie Kurose 
 
Staff Present:  Steve Maguire, Senior Land Use Enforcement Officer, Kiana Maisonet, Land Use 
Enforcement Officer, Dawn Fried, Clerk 
 
Ms. Salling opened the meeting at 7:30 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Application IW #23‐04 by Teton Capital Company, LLC, property located at 6 & 8 Commerce Road, 
for construction of a 171‐unit multifamily housing development.   
 
Ms. Salling read the legal notice into the record.  Ms. Salling reviewed the public hearing process, 
which included a ten minute maximum time for public persons to speak.  The public hearing will 
conclude at 9:30 pm and if needed will be continued to the next IWC meeting.   
 
Ms. Salling stated the Public Hearing will begin with public participation. 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
Steve Trinkaus, PE, Trinkaus Engineering, LLC, 114 Hunters Ridge Road, Southbury, CT, spoke on 
behalf of the Candlewood Valley Chapter of Trout Unlimited.  Mr. Trinkaus gave an overview of the 
stormwater management plan and a summary of the wetland impacts.  (See attached report and 
qualifications.) 
 
Don Leonard, 38 Joal Court, commended the Commission on their hard work.  Mr. Leonard asked 
the Commission how they assess the information they receive and how do they determine 
whether a third party review is needed.  Mr. Maguire stated the application process is extensive 
and is reviewed by Land Use, the Town Engineer and the Inland Wetlands Commission.  The 
Commission will consider a third party review if deemed necessary. 
 
Neil Baldino, 18 Gelding Hill Road, Sandy Hill, Vice President of Trout Unlimited Candlewood Valley 
gave a PowerPoint presentation titled “Deep Brook Watercourse – A High‐Quality Aquifer 
“Temperature Profile – Stress Zone & Lethal Zone”, dated April 12, 2023.  Mr. Baldino voiced his 
concerns regarding the rising water temperatures in Deep Brook, which is due to water runoff.  



2 
 

Mr. Baldino stressed higher water temperatures and thermal spikes are creating chronic stress, 
loss of energy and a decrease in the wild trout population.  (See attached PowerPoint 
presentation.) 
 
Joe Hovious, 3 Leopard Drive, Sandy Hook, presented a slide presentation titled “Comments 
submitted to Newtown Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Commission regarding the proposed 
development at 6 & 8 Commerce Drive, titled ‘Church Hill Farm at Deep Brook’ dated April 12, 
2023.”  (See attached.)  Mr. Hovious is concerned with the impacts from the increasing water 
flows and is questioning whether the water courses and stormwater plan can handle it.  Mr. 
Hovious has worked with Trout Unlimited and Deep Brook for 25+ years. 
 
Peter Paulos, P H Architects, LLC, 38 Taunton Hill Road has worked with the Hubbard’s for over 
nine years.  He stated they have done tremendous work on the Catherine Violet Hubbard Animal 
Sanctuary (CVHAS).  Mr. Paulos doesn’t want to lose everything they have worked for.  Mr. Paulos 
stated the Catherine Violet Hubbard property is a designated International Firefly Sanctuary as 
well as an International Monarch Butterfly Sanctuary.  Many colleges such as UCONN, WesCon, 
Yale and Cornell are working with the CVHAS on biodiversity studies and internships.  The CVHAS 
has also planted over 12,000 pollinator plants for the apiary/beehive programs.  Mr. Paulos has 
concerns with negative impacts on the watercourses and woodland areas as well as the use of 
pesticides, fertilizers and snowmelt on the proposed adjacent development.  Mr. Paulos asked the 
Commission to review the percentages for impervious surfaces and noted that the conservation 
easement should not be included in those calculations.  Mr. Paulos applauds the Commissioners 
for taking on this difficult decision.  
 
Dan Ackert, 6 Cider Mill Road, spoke about the positive human impacts Deep Brook has had on his 
family throughout the years.  Mr. Ackert described fishing on the brook with his children and how 
important the brook was to shaping their lives.  Mr. Ackert stated he is concerned with the rising 
water temperatures and the effect it will have on the brook and future generations.  Mr. Ackert is 
concerned that development and increased impervious surfaces will make it worse.  Mr. Ackert 
thanked the Commission and all those who have protected our waterways.   
 
Dan Holmes, Obtuse Street, stated you don’t have to be a professional engineer to understand the 
impacts of development and increased population.  Water quality and temperature have been 
impacted over the years.  Trout are indicator species of water quality and what happens to the 
trout happens to us.  Mr. Holmes spoke about the “sole source” aquifer and stated what we do 
above ground directly effects the aquifer.  He also stated it takes a community to protect this land 
and this aquifer. 
 
Mark D’Amico, 7 Tory Lane, thanked the Commission for their difficult job.  Mr. D’Amico stated the 
information given by the experts is bias due to the fact they were hired by the applicants.   
Mr. D’Amico implored the Commission to consider third party experts such as a soil scientist, 
stormwater engineer and animal biologist to give their professional opinions.  This is warranted 
due to the size and scope of the development and the sensitivity of property.  Mr. D’Amico is 
concerned that once the development is done, it can’t be undone.  Mr. D’Amico suggested saving 
the meadow by moving the development closer to Commerce Road.   



3 
 

 
Ms. Kurose asked whether the applicant looked at the CT Natural Diversity Data Base (NDDB).   
Ms. Kurose noted there is a protected species in the project area.  Ms. Kurose asked whether a 
survey will be conducted or a wildlife biologist will be consulted.  Atty. Olsen stated they are 
working on a set of revised plans and will be able to answer more questions at that time.   
Atty. Olsen introduced Steven Danzer, Wetland Scientist, PhD & Associates LLC, Stamford, CT.    
Mr. Danzer stated one species came up between 2010 and 2011, which was the Wood turtle.  The 
NDDB is a mandatory site used when obtaining a stormwater permit.  Mr. Danzer stated there is a 
plan in place which was carried over from the 2010 plan. 
 
Mr. Ferris stated he received reports from the applicant describing different underground 
stormwater systems.  Mr. Ferris asked Mr. Trinkaus whether he was familiar with these systems 
and whether these systems would work for this property.  Mr. Trinkaus stated he was familiar with 
the underground systems and stated soil tests would have to be done.  Mr. Trinkaus stated the 
open‐water surface pond, which is currently proposed, will be a real problem for thermal impact 
because new water comes in and pushes the warm water out.  Mr. Ferris asked whether the 
underground systems are capable of handling a certain amount of capacity.  Mr. Trinkaus stated 
yes as long as there is adequate room on the site. 
 
Ms. Horch discussed obtaining a peer review, which was brought up several times at the meeting.  
Ms. Horch would like to wait until the revised plans are submitted before hiring a third party.  The 
Commissioners concurred that a peer review will be discussed at a later time. 
 
Mr. Ferris asked Mr. Maguire to explain the Commission’s role pertaining to wildlife and the 
Commission’s decision.  Mr. Maguire stated the Commission determines whether the wetland 
characteristic would be altered by the absence or lack of that species.  The species tend to more 
related to wetlands and require a wetland resource.  Mr. Danzer confirmed. 
 
Atty. Olsen stated the applicant may need more time to revise the plans.  Atty. Olsen will reach out 
to Mr. Magure if they need an extension. 
 
The Public Hearing for IW #23‐04 by Teton Capital Company, LLC will remain open and be 
CONTINUED to the next IWC meeting on Wednesday, April 26, 2023 at 7:30 pm in the Council 
Chambers, Municipal Center, 3 Primrose Street, Newtown. 
 
PENDING APPLICATIONS 
 
IW Application #23‐05 by David & Molly Basak‐Smith, property located at 71 Lakeview Terrace, to 
construct a sloped accessway from the property to the waterfront by decreasing the grade. 
 
IW Application #23‐05 is TABLED for this meeting. 
 
ACCEPTANCE OF APPLICATION 
 
IW Application #23‐07 by Kevin Grover, property located at 10 Ox Hill Road for pond dredging. 



4 
 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 
Regular Meeting of March 22, 2023 
Change “Mr. Guidera” to “Ms. Guidera”.  Mr. Ferris moved to accept the amended minutes from  
March 22, 2023.  Ms. Horch seconded.  The minutes from March 22, 2023 were approved.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no additional business, Mr. Jackson moved to adjourn.  Ms. Horch seconded.  All in favor.  The 
Regular IWC Meeting of April 12, 2023 was adjourned at 8:55 pm.   
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
Dawn Fried 


































































































	IW Meeting Minutes 4-12-23
	6 & 8 Commerce TU Presentation 2 of 2
	6 & 8 Commerce TU Joe Hovious Comments
	6 & 8 Commerce Steve Trinkaus LISD Report
	6 & 8 Commerce Steve Trinkaus Qualifications

